
 

VERSION FOR PUBLIC RELEASE 
SOME INFORMATION MAY HAVE BEEN REDACTED FOR REASONS INCLUDING  

CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

MINUTES OF THE PHARMACEUTICAL MANAGEMENT AGENCY (PHARMAC) 
BOARD MEETING HELD 27 MAY 2023 

The meeting was held at Pharmac offices, Level 9, 40 Mercer Street, Wellington, and by zoom, 
and started at 9.00am with the following attendees: 

Board members 

Steve Maharey ((MA (Hons), CNZM)) Chair 
Anthony Jordan (BHB, MBChB, FRACP) Board member 

Talia Anderson-Town (BBS, PG Dip Professional  

Accounting, CA, CPP) Board member  
Diana Siew (PhD) Board member 

Peter Bramley Board Observer 
 
Apologies 
Lisa Lawrence Board Observer, CAC Chair 
 

Board Observers 

Jane Thomas Observer, PTAC Chair  
 

Pharmac staff in attendance 
Sarah Fitt Chief Executive 
Michael Johnson Director of Strategic Initiatives 
Lisa Williams Director of Operations 
Kathryn McInteer Director of Finance and Corporate 
Trevor Simpson Kaituruki Māori - Director Māori 
David Hughes Chief Medical Officer 
Arohia Dunn Board Secretary 
 

Attendees joined the meeting to present relevant papers: Jannel Fisher, Graham Durston, Jacqui 
Mettam, Brent McPherson, Ben Campbell-Macdonald, Geraldine MacGibbon, Caroline de Luca, 
James Anderson, Chippy Compton, Gillian Anderson, Danae Staples-Moon, Andrew Davies, 
Davina Carpenter, Yazmin Juned 

1. Director-only Discussion 

The Board had a director-only discussion. 

1.1 Glossary of Terms 

The Board noted the Glossary of Terms.  

1.2 Board Actions 

The Board noted the Board Actions.  



Version for Public Release 
Some information may have been excluded due to confidentiality 

Page 2 of 11 

1.3 Board Annual Agenda 2023 

The Board noted the Annual Agenda 2023.  

1.4 Board and Committee Member Terms 

The Board noted the Board and Committee Member terms.   

2. Apologies 

Lisa Lawrence. 

3. Record of Previous Board and Committee Meetings 

3.1 Minutes of April Board Meeting held on 28 April 2023 

The Board resolved to adopt the minutes of the April 2023 meeting, as being a true and 
correct record. 

Anthony Jordan and Talia Anderson-Town (Carried) 

3.2 Minutes of March Audit and Risk Committee Meeting 28 April 2023 

The Board resolved to adopt the minutes of the April 2023 meeting, as being a true and 
correct record. 

Anthony Jordan and Talia Anderson-Town (Carried) 

3.3 Summary of CAC Meeting 

This paper informed the Board, of advice received from the Consumer Advisory Committee 
at the 17 March 2023 Zoom meeting and 21 April 2023 face-to-face meeting. 

The Board: 

noted the minutes from the March and April Consumer Advisory Committee meeting; 

noted the summary of key issues across the meeting. 

4.  Interests Register 

The Board noted and updated the interests register. 

5. Matters Arising 

The Board noted the matters arising and actions progressed. 

6.  Chair’s Report 

6.1  Verbal Report 

The Board Chair provided a verbal update. 





Version for Public Release 
Some information may have been excluded due to confidentiality 

Page 4 of 11 

This paper focused on the next phase of targeted recruitment for Māori and Pacific medical 
practitioners, nursing and allied health professions and those working in primary care.  

The Board: 

noted the update on PTAC succession planning including purposeful recruitment for 
diversity of membership, potential expert advisor education and on-going work in the expert 
advisory work programme 
 
noted the ongoing work to better understand the costs incurred by primary care 
practitioners that may form a barrier to engaging in Pharmac’s committee network. 

8.2 People and Capability Update 

This paper provided the Board with an overview of the People and Capability Strategy 
(Strategy) work programme that is led by the People and Capability team. The paper also 
provided an update on our areas of future focus. 

The Board: 

noted the work programme update for the people and capability strategy programme and 
the progress made since the last Board update in February 2023. 

8.3 Consumer Advisory Committee Appointments 

This paper sought Board agreement to appoint Robyn Manuel as Chair of CAC and Nele 
Kalolo as Deputy Chair and to extend both their appointments for a further three-year term. 

The Board: 

noted that the term of the current CAC Chair, Lisa Lawrence, is due to end at the end of 
July 2023 and cannot be extended 

noted that Robyn Manuel’s initial appointment comes to an end in July 2023 

resolved to appoint Robyn Manuel for a further three-year term, ending July 2026 

resolved to appoint Robyn Manuel as the new CAC Chair from August 2023 

noted that there would be a two-month transition period between the current and new CAC 
Chair and Robyn’s board induction would occur prior to her attending her first board 
meeting as the CAC Chair 

noted that Nele Kalolo’s initial appointment comes to an end in July 2024 

resolved to appoint Nele Kalolo for a further three-year term ending July 2027 

resolved to appoint Nele Kalolo as CAC Deputy Chair from August 2023. 

Anthony Jordan and Talia Anderson-Town (Carried) 

9. Strategic Planning and Policy 

9.1 Final Statement of Performance Expectations and Statement of Intent  

This paper presented Pharmac’s 2023/24 - 2026/27 Statement of Intent (SOI) and 2023/24 
Statement of Performance Expectations (SPE) for Board approval. 



Version for Public Release 
Some information may have been excluded due to confidentiality 

Page 5 of 11 

The Board: 

noted that draft versions of the Statement of Intent and Statement of Performance 
Expectations were considered by the Board at its March 2023 meeting 

noted that draft versions of the Statement of Intent and Statement of Performance 
Expectations have been reviewed by Manatū Hauora, Audit NZ, Te Rōpū and the 
Consumer Advisory Committee 

noted due to the timing of the PTAC in May we did not provide them with the draft 
Statement of Intent (as it was being revised) but instead held a presentation and discussion  

noted that changes have been made to the draft Statement of Intent and Statement of 
Performance Expectations in response to the feedback received 

noted that we received Ministerial feedback on draft versions of the Statement of Intent and 
Statement of Performance Expectations on 19 May 2023 (refer to Appendix One) 

noted the Ministerial feedback has been reflected in the 2023/24 – 2026/27 Statement of 
Intent and 2023/24 Statement of Performance Expectations  

approved the 2023/24 – 2026/27 Statement of Intent and 2023/24 Statement of 
Performance Expectations 

noted that staff will make minor amendments and edits to the 2023/24 – 2026/27 
Statement of Intent and 2023/24 Statement of Performance Expectations ahead of final 
versions being printed 

noted that final printed versions of the Statement of Intent and Statement of Performance 
Expectations will be provided to Parliament for tabling before the due date of 30 June 2023.   

Anthony Jordan and Peter Bramley    (Carried) 

9.2 NZIER Review – Quality of Pharmac’s Advice 

This paper summarised the findings from New Zealand Institute of Economic Research’s 
(NZIER) review of a sample of Pharmac papers (refer to Appendix one). 

The Board: 

noted that NZIER have undertaken an independent quality of advice review of a sample of 
Pharmac internal and Board briefing papers 

noted that NZIER’s overall assessment shows a slight drop in performance compared with 
the previous year 

noted that the quality of advice score will be reported in Pharmac’s 2022/23 Annual Report 

noted that the Senior Leadership Team have reviewed the assessment and discussed 
opportunities for improvement 

discussed the content of the assessment, including recommendations and the next steps 
proposed by the Senior Leadership Team. 



Version for Public Release 
Some information may have been excluded due to confidentiality 

Page 6 of 11 

9.3 Upholding the Public Service Act Principles 

This paper provided the Board with an update as to how as an organisation Pharmac is 
upholding the principles of the new Public Service Act (the Act) to assist the Board in 
fulfilling its duties under the Act. 

The Board: 

noted that the Public Service Act came into effect in August 2020 

noted that as a Crown Agent Pharmac under the Public Service Act is part of the public 
service in relation to the purpose, principles, values and spirit of service of the public 
service 

noted that as a Crown agent Pharmac is not part of the public service for other aspects of 
the Act 

noted that the Pharmac Board is responsible for ensuring that Pharmac upholds the five 
public service principles when carrying out its functions 

noted the work and activity across the organisation to ensure that the principles of the 
Public Service Act are being upheld 

noted that the Board Governance Manual was updated in January 2022 to reflect the 
Public Service Act. 

10. Schedule and Funding 

10.1 Prioritisation Report    

This report described prioritisation activity since the last report presented to the Board at its 
February 2023 meeting. It also updated the Board on the progress of selected items from 
the following prioritisation lists: 

• the top 10 proposals on the Options for Investment list 

• proposals with a high PTAC priority on the Options for Investment or Under 
Assessment lists 

• proposals with a high PTAC or Specialist Advisory Committee priority on the Under-
Assessment list. 

The Board noted the prioritisation activity undertaken by Pharmac staff since February 
2023 and the progress of selected items from Pharmac’s prioritisation list. 

10.2 Pharmaceutical Transactions Report    

This paper provided the Board with an advanced overview of current issues relating to 
pharmaceuticals funded through the Combined Pharmaceutical Budget (CPB), including 
vaccines, current significant supply issues and the contentious, large or significant 
pharmaceutical transactions and investments that staff are currently progressing.  











Version for Public Release 
Some information may have been excluded due to confidentiality 

Page 11 of 11 

12. Interest Articles 

The Board noted the interest articles. 

13. General Business 

The meeting closed at 1.32pm with a karakia. 

 

Date of Next Meeting 

The date for the next Board meeting is set for 30 June 2023. 

 

 Approved and Signed        30 June 2023 

Steve Maharey, Chair         Date  
 


